Public Document Pack

Meeting of:
Date:
Time:
Venue:

Joint Overview and Scrutiny Panel
Thursday, 23rd July, 2020
2.30 pm.
Via Zoom

This agenda gives notice of items to be considered in private as required by
Regulations 5 (4) and (5) of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements)
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012.
Item
No.
1

AGENDA

Page No

Apologies
To receive any apologies for absence.

2

Declarations of Interest
Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal
or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of
those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.

3

Urgent Items of Business
To determine whether there are any additional items of business
which, by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should
be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency.

4

Minutes

4-7

To consider the Minutes of the Joint Overview and Scrtuiny Panel held
25th June 2020.
5

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plans 2019-20: Quarter 4
Performance Update

8 - 21

Director of Neighbourhoods to report
6

Economy Directorate Plans 2019-20: Quarter 4 Performance
Update

22 - 50

Director of Economy to report
7

Update on the Integrated Health & Social Care Pooled Fund
Section 75 Agreement

51 - 53

Report attached
8

Exclusion of Press and Public
To consider that the press and public be excluded from the remaining
part of the meeting pursuant to Section 100(A)4 of the Local
Government Act 1972 on the grounds that discussions may involve the
likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in the provisions of
Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972 and public
interest would not be served in publishing the information.

9

Link4Life Recovery Plan

54 - 168

Proposals regarding the future operations of Link4Life
10

Future delivery of Customer Contact Centre
Assistant Director (Information, Customers and Communities to report)

Joint Overview and Scrutiny Panel Members
Councillor Ray Dutton
Councillor Michael Holly
Councillor Andy Kelly
Councillor Daniel Meredith
Councillor Shaun O'Neill
Councillor Liam O'Rourke
Councillor Angela Smith
Councillor Patricia Sullivan
Councillor June West
Councillor Sameena Zaheer
For more information about this meeting, please contact:
Peter Thompson
Committees and Constitutional Services
Telephone: 01706 924715
e-mail: peter.thompson@rochdae.gov.uk

169 - 175

Agenda
ItemPack
4
Public
Document
JOINT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL
MINUTES OF MEETING
Thursday, 25th June 2020
PRESENT: Councillor Holly (in the Chair); Councillors Dutton, Kelly, Meredith,
O’Rourke, West and Zaheer.
OFFICERS: T. Harrison (Assistant Director – Adult Social Care), S. Smith
(Deputy Chief Finance Officer), Dr F. Davies (Children’s Services) and
P. Thompson (Resources Directorate)
APOLOGIES
21. Apologies for absence were received from Councillors O’Neill, Angela
Smith and Sullivan.
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
22. There were no declarations of interests.
MINUTES
23. Resolved:
That the Minutes of the Joint Scrutiny Panel, held 21st May 2020 be approved,
as a correct record.
NEW SCHOOLS - DISPOSAL OF SCHOOL SITES
24. The Members scrutinised a report of the Director of Children’s Services
which advised that the Rochdale borough was in the process of getting three
new central government delivered Academy Free schools. To facilitate this
process the Council had been working towards finding and delivering good
sites for the schools that meet local need.
A Department for Education (DfE) Capital Delivery team was now in place for
the proposed secondary school in Middleton. The final red line boundary for
the site was nearing agreement and negotiations were ongoing with regard to
agreeing the Heads of Terms. Cabinet approval was required for the disposal.
The disposal of the school site land would be by way of a lease for a Term of
125 years at a peppercorn rent. The DfE’s model lease model would be used.
The local authority has a statutory duty to offer every child living in the
borough, and who applies, a school place. Birth rates have been increasing
for the last 15 years and secondary schools in the Rochdale Borough have
reached capacity. The town of Middleton has and is continuing to see
increasing new housing, and with outstanding Primary schools locally, has
seen large rises in pupil numbers. Numbers of pupils are expected to continue
to rise until 2027/28.
With Rochdale Sixth Form College (RSFC), continuing to be outstanding and
a national leader in sixth form provision, the local authority is in a privileged
position with Altus Education Partnership, the RSFC trust, opening the new
secondary school in Middleton.

Page 3

Delivering the new school site and aiding the process of the new school
delivery is important for families looking for outstanding school provision in the
area, and will encourage families to settle in the Rochdale Borough and
facilitate improvements in education and therefore wider employability skills in
residents.
Resolved:
That the Scrutiny Panel recommends that the Cabinet, at its meeting on 30 th
June 2020, formally approves the recommendations in the submitted report.
FINANCE OUTTURN REPORT 2019/20
25. The Members scrutinised a report of the Chief Finance Officer that
advised of the Council’s final outturn financial position as at the end of
2019/2020; and sought approval for a contribution to Equalisation Reserve
totalling £3.2m; and approval of a capital budget switch request of Better Care
Funding which have incurred limited expenditure in 2019/2020 of £0.031m.
The Panel was informed that not reporting on financial performance would put
at risk the achievement of the Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan.
Effective budget management was critical to ensuring financial resources
were spent in line with the budget and were targeted towards the Council’s
priorities. Monitoring enabled the early identification of variations against the
plan and facilitated timely corrective action.
In considering this matter Members were informed that Cabinet had received
the report at its meeting on 26th May 2020. The report was presented to keep
Members updated on the financial position of the authority, as effective budget
management was critical to ensuring financial resources were spent in line
with the budget and are targeted towards the Council’s priorities. Monitoring
enabled the early identification of variations against the plan and facilitates
timely corrective action.
Resolved:
1. The Panel notes the final 2019/2020 outturn positions for Revenue, Capital
and Corporate Debt as at the end of 2019/2020.
2. The Panel notes the summary of 2019/2020 Equalisation Reserve
movements, as detailed at paragraph 4.1.1 of the submitted report.
3. The Panel notes that the Cabinet, at its meeting on 26th May 2020
approved the contribution to the Equalisation Reserve detailed at paragraph
4.1.2.of the submitted report.
4. The Panel notes the Budget Carry Forward requests and members endorse
the exception detailed at paragraph 4.1.3, of the submitted report.
5. The Panel notes the final Health and Social Care Pool Budget position as
detailed at paragraph 4.2, of the submitted report.
6. The Panel notes the net Capital budget increase of £6.980m, as shown at
paragraph 4.4.1, of the submitted report.
7. The Panel notes the Capital re-phasing of £48.309m, as detailed at
paragraph 4.4.2, of the submitted report.

Page 4

8. The Panel notes that the Cabinet, at its meeting on 26th May 2020,
approved the capital budget switch request that was detailed at paragraph
4.4.3 of the submitted report.
9. The Panel notes the return of £3.526m of Capital funding, as detailed at
paragraph 4.4.4, of the submitted report.
COLLECTION FUND OUTTURN 2019/20
26. The Members scrutinised a report of the Chief Finance Officer which
detailed the Collection Fund outturn position for 2019/2020. The Members
were informed there was a surplus of £0.932m, comprising: £1.869m surplus
relating to Business Rates; and a £0.937m deficit relating to Council Tax. The
Council’s share of the 2019/2020 Collection Fund outturn surplus was
£1.057m.
The Panel was informed that not reporting on financial performance puts at
risk the achievement of the Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan and that
effective budget management was critical to ensuring financial resources are
spent in line with the budget and were targeted towards the Council’s
priorities.
The Panel was informed that the Cabinet had received this report at its
meeting on 26th May 2020. The report had been presented to the Cabinet for
information as part of the budget monitoring process.
Resolved:
That the 2019/20 Collection Fund outturn position be noted.
DELEGATED APPROVAL REPORT 2019/20
27. The Panel Members scrutinised a report of the Chief Finance Officer
which provided details of approvals of spend under delegated powers in
relation to Revenue and Capital Schemes funded by additional grants or
income during 2019/2020.
The Panel was informed that the Cabinet had received this report, which was
for information, at its meeting on 26th May 2020.
Resolved:
That the report be noted.
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS OF THE COVID-19 OUTBREAK
28. The Panel scrutinised a report of the Chief Finance Officer which updated
Members on the forecast financial position relating to the impact of Covid-19
on the Council’s General Fund and Collection Fund, and Heywood, Middleton
& Rochdale Clinical Commissioning Group. The report also outlined the
actions required in order to mitigate the financial impact of Covid-19.
The purpose of the report was to seek Cabinet’s approval, at its meeting on
30th June 2020, for the usage of the emergency Government funding to
mitigate additional expenditure/loss of income resulting from the Covid-19

Page 5

outbreak and to also approve further actions required, as and when
necessary, in order to mitigate the financial impact of the Covid-19 outbreak.
Resolved:
That the Joint Scrutiny Panel recommends that the Cabinet approve the
recommendations, detailed in paragraph 2 of the Chief Finance Officer’s
report, at its meeting on 30th June 2020, when this matter is due to be
considered.
EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
29. Resolved:
That the Press and Public be excluded from the meeting during consideration
of the following item of business, in accordance with the provisions of Section
100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended.
APPROVAL TO AGREE A COMMISSIONING MODEL FOR EXTRA CARE
HOUSING
30. The Members scrutinised a report of the Head of Commissioning (Adult
care Service) which set out proposals for a commissioning model for extra
care housing. The commissioning model put forward fin the submitted report
sought to align the care and support funding model across all the existing
Extra Care Housing schemes and any future schemes that may be supported,
particularly any new schemes that are put forward in other areas where the
forecasted future demand suggests it will be required.
The Panel was advised that the report is due for submission to the Integrated
Commissioning Board at its meeting on 30th June 2020.
Resolved:
The Panel supports the recommendations contained in the report to establish
a commissioning model for extra care housing in the Borough and
recommends that those recommendations are formally adopted by the
Integrated Commissioning Board on 30th June 2020.

Page 6

Agenda Item 5
Report to Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny
Committee
Date of Meeting
Portfolio

Report Author
Public/Private Document

23rd July 2020
Cabinet Member for
Neighbourhoods,
Community & Culture
Ben Jorgensen

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plans 2019-20: Quarter 4
Performance Update
Executive Summary
1.

To report progress at the end of Quarter 4 (1st January – 31st March 2020)
towards achievement of the targets contained in the Neighbourhoods
Directorate Plan 2019-20
Recommendation

2.

Members are asked to review the information contained within the report
and the appendices.
Reason for Recommendation

3.

In accordance with the Council’s performance management framework,
progress toward targets contained within Directorate Plans are to be
reported to relevant Overview & Scrutiny Committees at the end of each
quarter.

3.1

The Quarter 4 progress report for the Neighbourhoods Directorate is
attached at Appendix 1. Actions within each appendix have been colour
coded in accordance with the following criteria

3.2

Red: Action not fully completed or not on track to be completed by the target
date
Amber: Action not fully completed or not on track to be completed by the
target date due to circumstances outside of the directorate’s control
Green: Action completed by the target date
Purple: Action is not yet due for completion but is currently on track
The appendix includes a commentary against actions that are showing red,
amber or purple.

Page 7

3.3

This year the directorate plans are formatted differently to include milestones
for each directorate action. This enables O&S to monitor the work that must
be completed, to support achievement of the action.

Key Points for Consideration
4.

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2019-20 Progress

Performance Overview
4.1

71% (12) of the actions included in the Directorate Plan 2019-20 aren’t fully
complete and the action due date has now passed. Five further actions have
now been completed. The chart below shows the overall performance of the
Directorate in meeting its plan targets at the end of Quarter 4.

4.2

The actions that aren’t fully complete and the due dates have passed
(Amber) relate to:
 Work in partnership to implement new Community Safety Plan to
reduce crime and disorder
 Transform and improve customer, digital and information governance
provision
 Modify the homelessness prevention strategy in line with legislative
changes, GM and national priorities
 Modify the Council’s Housing Allocations Policy and Scheme meets
statutory requirements and makes the maximises the use of housing
stock in the borough
 Commence a CPO Programme for 36 sites across the borough
 Sustain as a minimum our recycling rate (in year 2019/20) whilst
reviewing current waste management strategy to improve rates in
conjunction with the governments resources & waste strategy.

Page 8

 Improve the cleanliness of our streets and open spaces and public
realm
 Highways Input to Support Economic/Housing growth
 Capitalise on the delivery of the Highways Capital Programme &
Additional Investment – leading to improved road condition
 Capitalise on Rochdale’s registered housing providers investment
monies available through the GM Mayoral Fund
 Support the development and implementation of the GM Clean Air
Plan to tackle nitrogen dioxide exceedances
 Accelerated Housing Programme
Quarter 4 Summary
4.3

The Draft Domestic Abuse Strategy is still in place and being accessed by
partners and is being overseen by a multi-agency Domestic Abuse Steering
Group. A strategic needs assessment is being undertaken by partners to
better inform our final strategy. The needs assessment was due to be
completed by June 2020 however, given the impact of Covid-19, the
deadline for the needs assessment has been extended by six months as
agreed by Informal Cabinet.

4.4

A new Reducing Crime and Anti-Social Behaviour partnership group has
been established to drive forward the development of the strategy and
action plan. Draft action plan has been produced but not finalised due to
partnership meetings being temporarily suspended during lockdown.

4.5

Phase 2 of the Customer Transformation programme is now underway. In
the next month implementation of the new Contact Management System
(CMS) and Self-Scanning system will commence. The Asset Management
Project is now being funded via the CTP, and will also start implementation
in the coming weeks.

4.6

Research on technical requirements as part of a review of Contact Centre
provision has been undertaken and an initial paper in relation to the future
role of the Customer Contact Centre has been prepared. Meetings have
taken place regarding possible additional services that could be included in
the future operating model.

4.7

Work planned to implement a Highways Advertising Board permit scheme to
regulate obstructions in high-footfall areas is progressing. Report taken to
informal Cabinet in February. Consultation and further report to be taken
later in the year.

4.8

Construction expected to commence in summer/Autumn 2020 for the South
Heywood J19 Link Road. The tender process was ongoing through Q4 and
submissions to be returned from bidders on 4 April 2020. FBC document
being prepared for submission to TfGM in April 2020. Planning Approval
granted.
Work associated with the Flood Resilience programme of high risk flood
sites has progressed well however a small amount of budget will be carried
into 2020/21 to continue this work.

4.9

Page 9

4.10 Supporting TfGM with the development and delivery of the statutory
consultation around the GM Clean Air Plan and subsequent submission of
the Full Business Case for the GM Clean Air Plan has been put on hold due
to the Covid-19 pandemic.
Alternatives Considered
4.11 Not applicable

Costs and Budget Summary
5.

None

Risk and Policy Implications
6.

None

Consultation
7.

Not required

Background Papers
8.

Place of Inspection

Appendix 1 - Neighbourhoods
Directorate Plan 2019-20 Q4

For Further Information Contact:

Number One Riverside, Smith Street,
Rochdale OL16 1XU

Ben Jorgensen, ,
ben.jorgensen@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 10

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2019-20
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

NDP1901 Work in partnership to implement new Community Safety Plan to reduce crime and disorder

31 January 2020



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

NDP1901.A

Develop and sign off new Domestic Abuse Strategy for borough

30 November 2019



The Draft Domestic Abuse Strategy is still in place and being accessed by partners and is being overseen by a multi-agency Domestic Abuse Steering Group. A
strategic needs assessment is being undertaken by partners to better inform our final strategy. The needs assessment was due to be completed by June 2020
however, given the impact of Covid-19, the deadline for the needs assessment has been extended by six months as agreed by Informal Cabinet.
NDP1901.B

Complete new Anti-Social Behaviour Strategy for the borough

31 January 2020



Page 11

A new Reducing Crime and Anti-Social Behavior partnership group has been established to drive forward the development of the strategy and action plan. Draft
action plan has been produced but not finalised due to partnership meetings being temporarily suspended during lockdown. It is anticipated that the new strategy
for the borough will be completed by end of next quarter.

NDP1902 Implement plans to prevent community tensions and support a more cohesive and integrated
community

31 March 2020



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

NDP1902.A

Through project with Government develop an insight into community settlement patterns in the
borough and the impact on services

31 December 2019



Analysis on local datasets has commenced by council analyst which will demonstrate how the tool can be practically used to develop and inform policy. Final report
on demographic patterns and migration patterns due before end of financial year.
NDP1902.B

Support Rochdale Connections Trust and M6 Theatre to deliver ‘Building Stronger Britain
Together’ projects

29 February 2020



31 March 2020



BSBT projects complete and showcased to Home Office and local partners.
NDP1902.C

Deliver with Foundation 4 Peace the ‘Families for Peace’ programme across the borough

The commissioned work from the Council has been completed and Foundations 4 Peace are including their work across the borough. At least 60 people were
trained in conflict resolution and community dialogue facilitation.
Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 1 Of 10

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2019-20
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

NDP19003 Roll out work of integrated place based teams to reduce crisis demand and deliver value for
money and wider benefits

29 February 2020



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

NDP1903.A

Complete annual citizen-led leadership challenges in partnership with GMCA

31 December 2019



Edge Hill University Colleagues have completed a full summary report reviewing ten years of citizen action and research to date in Rochdale Borough. The
challenges have been completed for 2019-20 and the group is working towards challenges for 20-21, including participation in the Ageing in Place programme in
the borough.

Page 12

NDP1903.B

Following pilot stages, have in place active Place Teams based in each of the 5 townships

29 February 2020



Operational teams are in place across the borough, however, due to Covid19, the case work is being prioritised according to additional risk. This case work is being
managed centrally. Place teams are operational but are meeting virtually and multi-disciplinary teams are in place around individual cases.

NDP1904 Agree plan for embedding Public Service Reform across the borough

31 October 2019



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

NDP1904.A

Partnership put in place to support reform activity across Council, partners and Health and Social
Care following reform benchmark exercise

30 September 2019



31 October 2019



The new partnership is in place and working well. Activity has been paused due to Covid-19.
NDP1904.B

Begin implementation of new service models

The Heywood Place Team is now fully operational with drop ins and multi-agency partners in place. Additional peripatetic teams are in place in Middleton and
Pennines with plans to develop a Cooperative Place Partnership in a test area in Pennines.

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 2 Of 10

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2019-20
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

NDP1905 Transform and improve customer, digital and information governance provision

31 March 2020



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

NDP1905.A

Deliver Phase 1 (analysis) and commence Phase 2 (delivery) of Customer Transformation
Programme

31 October 2019



Phase 2 of the programme is now underway. In the next month implementation of the new Contact Management System (CMS) and Self-Scanning system will
commence. The Asset Management Project is now being funded via the CTP, and will also start implementation in the coming weeks.
NDP1905.B

Agree final partnership delivery plan relating to Digital Strategy

31 December 2019



Page 13

A consultation workshop was held with partners and colleagues in January to discuss a draft strategy and identify actions as part of a delivery plan. Wider
consultation with businesses and the voluntary and community sector has not been possible due to covid-19.
NDP1905.C

Undertake review of Contact Centre provision options and propose future operating model

31 March 2020



Research on technical requirements has been undertaken and an initial paper in relation to the future role of the Customer Contact Centre has been prepared.
Meetings have taken place regarding possible additional services that could be included in the future operating model.

NDP1906 Promote the borough as a desirable place to live, work and do business.

31 July 2019



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

NDP1906.A

Work with internal stakeholders to determine communication priorities for 2019/20

31 July 2019



Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 3 Of 10

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2019-20
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

Service priorities have been agreed with departments and work has been progressed.
Some campaigns are still to be agreed, including one that will be focussed on inward investment.
The communications team is providing regular updates of performance to members of wider leadership and relevant members.

NDP1907 Determine vision and priorities to offer strategic direction for the and the Borough and the
Council

31 December 2019



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

NDP1907.A

Develop a new Corporate Plan for 2019/ 2020 onwards

30 September 2019



Page 14

The Corporate Plan 2019 - 2022 has been developed and has been considered through the Council's governance process, receiving approval at Full Council on 18th
December 2019.

NDP1907.B

Develop a joint Equality and Diversity Strategy for the Borough for Council and CCG

31 December 2019



The draft strategy has now been developed through extensive consultation and will be taken through the Council and CCG governance processes in the New Year.

NDP1908 Modify the homelessness prevention strategy in line with legislative changes, GM and national
priorities

31 March 2020



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

NDP1908.A

Audit existing strategy

30 June 2019



Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 4 Of 10

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2019-20
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

The Phase 2 prototyping went well and have clearly identified procedural changes that will have a positive benefit for both the client and the organisations engaged
in providing services to the homeless. Discussions and negotiations are underway with partner organisations to develop system changes derived from the
prototyping exercises, along with a programme to introduce the changes.
NDP1908.B

Identify strategic priorities inc. issues relating to housing access and supply; out of borough
placements; early intervention and prevention

31 August 2019



Work has commenced to update and better integrate strategies and policies across Homelessness, Housing Access, Housing Strategy, affordable housing and other
related corporate strategies and policies. Much work is underway with partner departments within the Council, external agencies and third sector organisations
involved in dealing with, caring for and rehousing homeless clients.
NDP1908.C

Establish a regional Strategy sub group

30 September 2019



Page 15

OOB placements continue to cause concern, especially as complex cases do not receive support from the borough making the placement, increasing the pressure
on our services and other local support groups. The GM-driven agenda continues to evolve but the main stumbling block is still the availability of both temporary
and move-on accommodation which is equally a local and GM-wide issue as demand continues to increase.
NDP1908.D

Develop a revised Homelessness strategy

31 March 2020



The revised strategy is being developed and will take into account the research and prototyping work undertaken with FutureGov, partner agencies, voluntary and
third sector groups and, most importantly, our clients.

NDP1909 Modify the Council’s Housing Allocations Policy and Scheme meets statutory requirements and
makes the maximises the use of housing stock in the borough

31 March 2020



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

NDP1909.A

Review of current policy and scheme to ensure it is fit for purpose

30 June 2019



We have entered another stage in the review process, utilising the research and prototyping work to develop a revised policy and implementation plan for a revised
allocations scheme.
NDP1909.B

Commission and undertake Phase 1 of business transformation study / service development

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 5 Of 10

31 August 2019



Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2019-20
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

Complete
31 December 2019



31 January 2020



31 March 2020



NDP1910 Commence a CPO Programme for 36 sites across the borough

31 March 2020



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

NDP1910.A

Commence the statutory CPO process on the priority list of problem sites and buildings

31 March 2020



NDP1909.C

Develop and implement quick wins and explore opportunities identified by Phase 1.

Phase 1 complete.
NDP1909.D

Phase 2 - develop consultation and implementation plans for longer term changes identified
through Phase 1

Phase 2 now complete and final report is in preparation. Phase 2 is 90% complete
NDP1909.E

Review housing outcomes

Page 16

On-going.

Negotiations and site-specific discussions ongoing with the owners of 5 of the CPO target sites. 2 CPOs have been submitted to the SoS and a further 6 are in
preparation and will be submitted in Q1 in 2020/21. The remaining cases are at various stages of decision-making within the CPO process.

NDP1911 Sustain as a minimum our recycling rate (in year 2019/20) whilst reviewing current waste
management strategy to improve rates in conjunction with the governments resources & waste strategy.

31 July 2019



Ref.

Due

Status

Name

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 6 Of 10

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2019-20
Action Plan

NDP1911.A

Due Date

Present recommendations for refresh of Rochdale’s Waste Strategy to encompass where
appropriate recommendations from DEFRA Waste & Resources with a view to implementation of
recommendations in 20/21

30 June 2019

Status



The Environment Bill 2020 was published this quarter but the pandemic is likely to impact progress of the legislation. HWRCs access restriction went live in
February, sites then closed on 23 March due to pandemic.
NDP1911.B

Implement a programme of targeted activities to take place in 2019/20 to promote recycling, reuse and reductions in household waste

31 July 2019



Recycling officers continued working with community groups and schools until school closures were announced. Issues with paper and cardboard contamination,
this is a problem nationally as markets are more selective on what material they will accept.

NDP1912 Improve the cleanliness of our streets and open spaces and public realm

31 January 2020



Page 17

Ref.

Name

Due

Status

NDP1912.A

Develop a process to address Fly-tipping and side-waste at bin collection points and alleyways

30 June 2019



Back office changes to how cases are logged in development which will provide additional operational time to clear fly tipping. First cases submitted to legal under
s108 of Environment Act
Implement Highways Advertising Board permit scheme to regulate obstructions in high-footfall
areas

31 January 2020



NDP1913 Highways Input to Support Economic/Housing growth

31 March 2020



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

NDP1913.A

Commence construction South Heywood J19 Link Road

30 June 2019



NDP1912.B

Report taken to informal Cabinet in February. Consultation and further report to be taken later in the year.

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 7 Of 10

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2019-20
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

Tender process ongoing through Q4. Submissions to be returned from bidders on 4 April 2020. FBC document being prepared for submission to TfGM in April 2020.
Planning Approval granted. Construction expected to commence in summer/Autumn 2020.
NDP1913.B

Support GMSF/Northern Gateway, RR Phase 2 and Station Gateway

31 March 2020



Highway Development Control have continued to provide advice and consultation responses to all planning applications, including details on the Locality
Assessments for GMSF proposals and pre-application advice
NDP1913.C

Town Centre master planning including a new Rochdale Town Centre traffic model

31 March 2020



The Town Centre Masterplans are now in draft form and Highways continue to provide advice and arrange workshops with elected Members on how to deliver the
plans 100% complete

Page 18

NDP1914 Capitalise on the delivery of the Highways Capital Programme & Additional Investment –
leading to improved road condition

31 March 2020



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

NDP1914.A

Deliver LTP capital programme

31 March 2020



31 March 2020



All works associated with Year 2 (2019/2020) of the LTP programme have been completed.
NDP1914.B

Deliver Year 2 of 3 of additional leader investment funding – value £4m

Highways brought an additional £2m in funding forward which was delivered in Y2. All works associated with year 2 of the programme have been completed.
NDP1914.C

Undertake targeted structural patching of areas of carriageway where there concentrated amount
of potholes - £1.08m

31 March 2020



31 March 2020



All works associated with this programme have been ordered and completed on site.
NDP1914.D

Deliver Flood Resilience programme of High Risk flood sites - £500k

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 8 Of 10

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2019-20
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

Work associated with the flooding programme have progressed well however a small amount of budget will be carried into 2020/21.

NDP1915 Capitalise on Rochdale’s registered housing providers investment monies available through the
GM Mayoral Fund

31 March 2020



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

NDP1915.A

Work with registered housing providers to agree the build programme for delivery of both
affordable and supported housing.

31 March 2020



31 March 2020



30 September 2019



Discussions and negotiations are ongoing in respect of several sites in both public and private ownership.
NDP1915.B

Page 19

Bring forward inner town Brownfield sites to provide community led housing for the most
challenged communities and promote town centre development

Initial meetings held with facilitators and one of the community groups
NDP1915.C

Engage with developers receiving HCA grant monies to ensure they are aware of opportunities in
Rochdale

Homes England funded pipeline is healthy with two large schemes going through planning process. On-going in respect of the two schemes.

NDP1916 Support the development and implementation of the GM Clean Air Plan to tackle nitrogen
dioxide exceedances

31 March 2020



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

NDP1916.A

Develop and deliver the clustered stakeholder engagement events with Rochdale, Oldham and
Tameside taxi trade

31 July 2019



Completed. Cluster meeting took place on 13.2.19 in Oldham involving reps from Rochdale Oldham and Tameside taxi trade. Further follow up Rochdale trade
briefing took place on 24.7.19.
NDP1916.B

Support TfGM with the development and delivery of other stakeholder engagement events

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 9 Of 10

31 July 2019



Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2019-20
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

Supporting the dissemination of update information to stakeholders using existing Council networks and databases of trade sectors who will be impacted by the
proposals.
NDP1916.C

Support TfGM with the development and delivery of the statutory consultation around the GM
Clean Air Plan

31 October 2019



Consultation has been delayed due to COVID 19 pandemic. JAQU have been informed that statutory consultation will be delayed.
NDP1916.D

Support TfGM in the production and submission of the Full Business Case for the GM Clean Air
Plan

31 December 2019



Scheduled to be finalised after statutory consultation has been completed. The delay in consultation has the consequential impact of delaying the full business case.
NDP1916.E

Support TfGM with the location, commissioning and maintenance of a real-time monitoring
station within the Borough

31 March 2020



Page 20

SLA has been signed and returned to TfGM. Interim budget has been allocated and the procurement will commence in 2020-21 Q1 via call-off from the frameworks.

NDP1917 Accelerated Housing Programme

30 November 2020



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

NDP1917.A

Commission consultant study to inform approach to delivering higher value housing

30 September 2019



30 November 2019



Workshops have been delayed due to recruitment and other issues and will proceed at the earliest opportunity.
NDP1917.B

Promote at an agreed annual programme of sites for the development of higher value housing in
order to widen housing choice and retain economically active households.

Discussions with developers on high value Council sites ongoing 50%.

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 10 Of 10

Agenda Item 6
Report to Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny
Committee
Date of Meeting
Portfolio

Report Author
Public/Private Document

23rd July 2020
Cabinet Member for
Regeneration, Business,
Skills & and Urban Living
Cabinet Member for
Planning, Development
and Housing
Ben Jorgensen

Economy Directorate Plans 2019-20: Quarter 4 Performance
Update
Executive Summary
1.

To report progress at the end of Quarter 4 (1st January – 31st March 2020)
towards achievement of the targets contained in the Economy Directorate
Plan 2019-20
Recommendation

2.

Members are asked to review the information contained within the report
and the appendices.
Reason for Recommendation

3.

In accordance with the Council’s performance management framework,
progress toward targets contained within Directorate Plans are to be
reported to relevant Overview & Scrutiny Committees at the end of each
quarter.

3.1

The Quarter 4 progress report for the Economy Directorate is attached at
Appendix 1. Actions within each appendix have been colour coded in
accordance with the following criteria

3.2

Red: Action not fully completed or not on track to be completed by the target
date
Amber: Action not fully completed or not on track to be completed by the
target date due to circumstances outside of the directorate’s control
Green: Action completed by the target date
Purple: Action is not yet due for completion but is currently on track

Page 21

The appendix includes a commentary against actions that are showing red,
amber or purple.
3.3
Appendix 2 provides information on the Q4 performance of Rochdale
Development Agency.
3.4
This year the directorate plans are formatted differently to include milestones
for each directorate action. This enables O&S to monitor the work that must
be completed, to support achievement of the action.

Key Points for Consideration
4.

Economy Directorate Plan 2019-20 Progress

Performance Overview
4.1

82% (9) of the actions included in the Directorate Plan 2019-20 aren’t fully
complete and the action due date has now passed. Two further actions have
now been completed. The chart below shows the overall performance of the
Directorate in meeting its plan targets at the end of Quarter 4.

4.2

The actions that aren’t fully complete and the due dates have passed
(Amber) relate to:









Increase local employment
Promote and say yes to good development
Create vibrant Town Centres
Make the most of our built, natural and historic environment.
Provide an effective and efficient portfolio of Council assets
Maximise income for the Council
Capitalise on our investment in regional growth
Deliver high quality and effective services

Page 22

 Deliver more high value and aspirational housing
Quarter 4 Summary
4.3

During the year, the Borough employment rate fell from 70.4% of the
working age adult population to 69.3%. This remains below the NW and UK
average and is the 3rd lowest within Greater Manchester.

4.4

However, there have been notable successes. Of the 384 new jobs created,
support was provided to Trade Centre UK to locally recruit more than 100
jobs at Sandbrook Park and Employment Links supported more than 50
clients secure job offers with occupiers of Rochdale Riverside, which have
subsequently been put on hold.

4.5

The Council’s industrial units programme continued with completion of the
Logic scheme on Kingsway Business Park. Four of the units are let,
including the largest unit. However, agreements for a further 5 lettings
stalled, either as a consequence of Brexit uncertainty, or more recently the
COVID 19 pandemic. Planning permission is in place for a further scheme
on Oldham Road, Rochdale. Construction will commence once safe to do
so.

4.6

Elsewhere on Kingsway, two business commenced operations - Dachser
opened a logistics facility and Trade Mouldings took a 75,000 sq. ft. unit.

4.7

Good progress was made on Rochdale Riverside with the scheme on target
to open April 2020. Work on a Rochdale Town Centre Residential Strategy
was not completed pending results from a new Town Centre traffic model,
taking account the traffic impacts of the Rochdale Riverside development.
£4m of GMCA funding was secured to support remediation work on
Rochdale Riverside Phase 2. Planning permission was granted for this work
which is due to commence later in 2020. Cabinet resolved to progress with
Phase 2 detailed design work to establish the preferred uses for the site and
their viability. Progress has been made to redevelop the Central Retail Park
site for new housing with a potential developer partner expected to submit a
planning application later in 2020.

4.8

The Rochdale Uprising Mural Festival took place over the August bank
holiday weekend, inspired by Rochdale’s co-operative heritage. It saw 12
large scale murals painted across the town centre. The event attracted
widespread positive media coverage and continues to bring new people in to
the town. The indoor market closed as it was not financially viable.
Responsibility for the outdoor market was handed over to a private operator.
The Heritage Action Zone historic building repair grant scheme commenced
with grants awarded. A local contractor was appointed to refurbish the
Maclure Road fire station. The opening of the new museum is scheduled for
late 2020.

4.9

Planning permission was granted for the Junction 19 link road in March.
Delays in bringing forward the GM Spatial Framework for consultation meant
we were unable to progress our Local Plan during 2019/20

Page 23

4.10 Masterplans for Heywood and Middleton Town Centres will shortly be
presented to Members. The Council signed a partnership agreement with
GMCA and Network Rail, known as the GM Stations Alliance – the first in
GM. This will promote regeneration of brownfield land, primarily for housing,
around rail stations. Masterplans for Rochdale and Castleton stations have
been completed and will be adopted for local planning purposes. A
Masterplan for Littleborough will be prepared during 2020 funded through
the Alliance. Land was acquired at Smithy Bridge for development.
4.11 The published GM Local Industrial Strategy includes a ‘new specialised
Advanced Materials City’ within the Northern Gateway employment area.
Grant funding was secured from GMCA to work with Bury to develop this
proposition further. To co-ordinate our various local economic strategies, a
2020 - 2030 Growth Plan was endorsed by Cabinet.
4.12 The target for £1m new business rates growth was not achieved. This had
assumed in-year completion of the Rochdale Riverside scheme which
completed post year-end in April 2020.
4.13 Overall, income from Estates, Planning and Building Control activities in
2019/20 was £6,318,640. A further £9,273,021 secured from devolved
funds for Rochdale related projects. A further £10.5m of GM funding for the
Castleton - Rochdale town centre cycle corridor scheme was to have been
awarded by GMCA at its postponed meeting of March 2020. Overall, total of
external funding secured for 2019/20 was £16.9m.
4.14 The disposal of assets yielded receipts of £1,267,007.23 and overall income
from rents was £2,545,614. The Council completed the acquisition of David
Lloyd Leisure at Bowlee providing an annual income of £388,187 at a yield
expected to exceed 9%. No further suitable properties were identified for
acquisition using the Property Growth Fund in 2019/20. Whilst it remains a
key objective to achieve the savings targets this must be balanced by
prudence in the selection of appropriate investments in order to manage the
exposure to financial risk.
Alternatives Considered
4.15 Not applicable

Costs and Budget Summary
5.

None

Risk and Policy Implications
6.

None the matters detailed in this report are provided for information.

Page 24

Consultation
7.

Not required

Background Papers
8.

Place of Inspection

Appendix 1 - Economy
Directorate Plan 2019-20 Q4

Number One Riverside, Smith Street,
Rochdale OL16 1XU

Appendix 2 - RDA Performance
Report Q4
Appendix 3 – Infographics

For Further Information Contact:

Ben Jorgensen, ,
ben.jorgensen@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 25

Economy Directorate Plan 2019-20
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

E19001 Increase local employment

31 March 2020



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

E19001.A

Engage with people who are out of work to access employment through Employment Links and
Working Well contracts.

31 March 2020



The borough's employment rate has increased slightly to 69.3% of the working age adult population. This remains significantly below the NW and UK average and
the 3rd lowest in GM. The out of work claimant count has increased in the borough as well as regionally and nationally. There are now 505 more out of work
claimants in the borough compared to the last quarter (this is before any Covid19 impact is seen).Employment Links has performed well with more than 50 clients
securing job offers with occupiers of Rochdale Riverside. The GMCA-commissioned Working Well contracts show mixed performance with the Early help contract
(those at risk of falling out of employment due to health issues) needing significant local support to engage with small businesses and employees. This support
including co-location will continue into next year.

Page 26

Provide training for front line council and partner staff to offer first stage jobs and skills support in
community venues

E19001.C

Provide opportunities for learners to engage on courses

E19001.B

31 March 2020



Training for frontline partners has been completed and will now just offer refresher updates. The success of the Get Rochdale Working facebook group is greater
than we thought possible. The group now has over 3700 members and is proving an excellent way of reaching job seekers and job changers in the borough. Whilst
it is not aimed at employers, they too are providing more vacancy information than we have ever had and therefore it is a very quick and efficient process to
communicate new job opportunities and training courses that are available.
31 March 2020



This quarter all targets have been exceeded. An additional 60 learners and 5 new classes in addition to the continuation of the existing 25 classes, have started.
Demand for this basic English support is increasing.
E19001.D

Recruit and provide training and retraining for new and existing volunteers

31 March 2020



13 new volunteers have been recruited and trained this quarter and 2 volunteer support sessions have been held which allows volunteers to help design future
classes based on experiences.
Attract new businesses by completing development of new industrial units at Kingsway Business
31 March 2020

Park, Mossfield and Oldham Road units by 2021
Logic@Kingsway, the 11-unit scheme delivered by the RDA and Wilson Bowden, funded by RBC, which was completed in June 2020, secured 3 lettings during Q4.
Planning permission is in place for a further scheme on the former Bradfearns site, Oldham Road, Rochdale. Construction will commence once it is safe to do so. A
scheme is under development for the Mossfield, Heywood site and it is hoped to apply for permission and commence on site before end of 2020/21. Opportunities
E19001.E

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 1 Of 10

Economy Directorate Plan 2019-20
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

for further sites, including a scheme in Middleton are also being explored.

E19002 Create new jobs and safeguard jobs

31 March 2020



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

E19002.A

Create new jobs through Business engagement / liaison with existing businesses

31 March 2020



31 March 2020



E19003 Attract inward investment and support business growth

31 March 2020



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

E19003.A

Co-deliver a portfolio of target companies across the Borough for an Account Management
strategy for Local Businesses through visits to businesses.

31 March 2020



31 March 2020



At the end of Q4, the total number of new jobs created for 2019/20 reached 384 against a target of 350.
E19002.B

Protect jobs which are at risk in local businesses through engagement liaison

Page 27

At the end of Q4, the total number of jobs safeguarded was 319 against a target of 250.

58 company visits have taken place to date (18 in this quarter). This action is now complete.
E19003.B

Consult with 200 businesses per annum through Place Board Ambassadors scheme/Deliver up to 4
events per annum, one each quarter.

The most recent Ambassadors event took place in N1R under Dippy in February with over 100 businesses attending.

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 2 Of 10

Economy Directorate Plan 2019-20
Action Plan

E19003.C

Due Date

£30m of private sector investment generated by assisted projects

31 March 2020

Status



The total investment (public and private) target of £30m was slightly exceeded with total investment of £30.2m during the financial year. This doesn’t include
Rochdale Riverside spend which will be reported in Q1 of 2020/21.

E19004 Promote and say yes to good development

31 March 2020



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

E19004.A

Consult on Publication Site Allocations Plan Document

31 October 2019



Page 28

As a result of delays in bringing forward the next version of the GMSF for consultation we are taking further advice as to the preparation of our Local Plan.
Issue planning permission for J19 link road scheme

E19004.C

Submit Site Allocations Plan to PINS

E19004.B

31 December 2019



Planning permission was granted in March 2020 for the Junction 19 link road scheme. The Council is now working with the GMCA to secure the Local Growth Deal
funding to commence the scheme once it is safe to do so.
31 March 2020



As a result of delays in bringing forward the next version of the GMSF for consultation we are taking further advice as to the preparation of our Local Plan.
E19004.D

Engage private sector to bring forward brownfield land for housing across the Borough e.g. Akzo
Nobel, British Vita, Carcraft, Langley sites

31 March 2020



Work on the 4 Countryside Properties schemes in Rochdale temporarily ceased at end of Q4 due to the coronavirus outbreak. However, prior to that these schemes
were progressing well and will complete by the autumn of 2020. Planning permission has since been granted for new homes on the former Dunlop Mills site in
Castleton and Homes England completing the sale of the Carcraft site to a housebuilder with a planning application expected in Summer 2020. The Council has
agreed to dispose of land to support a viable development of the forward the British Vita site in Middleton as well as promoting several brownfield sites around
Rochdale and Castleton stations, including Central Retail Park.

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 3 Of 10

Economy Directorate Plan 2019-20
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

E19005 Create vibrant Town Centres.

31 March 2020



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

E19005.A

Produce annual action plan for Rochdale Town Centre Delivery Plan.

30 June 2019



The action plan has now been agreed and will be updated every quarter - this has now been completed.
Launch Rochdale Town Centre Residential Strategy and Delivery mechanisms for CRP and RR
31 December 2019

Phase 2
Work on a Rochdale Town Centre Residential Strategy has not been completed as we await the completion of a new Town Centre traffic modelling, taking account
of Rochdale Riverside development. However, work is taking place to bring forward the Rochdale Riverside Phase 2 scheme and to appoint a developer partner for
the Central Retail Park site. Funding discussions are ongoing with GMCA and Homes England to look at how we can deliver the Riverside Phase 2 and Central Retail
Park sites. £4m of GMCA funding was secured to support remediation work on Rochdale Riverside Phase 2 site and a planning application for this work was granted
during Q4 with work set to take place later in 2020.
E19005.B

Page 29

E19005.C

Launch Rochdale Station Gateway Masterplan

31 December 2019



The Rochdale Station Gateway Masterplan has been completed and presented to Members in Q4. The Plan will be developed into a Draft Supplementary Planning
Document for public consultation during 2020/21. The Council is working with the GMCA and Stations Alliance to secure additional funding to undertake more
detailed feasibility work around traffic management, bus routing, public realm works and car parking as well as identify early phases of development.
E19005.D

Agree Town Centre Masterplans for Heywood, Middleton and Littleborough

31 December 2019



Work to finalise traffic surveys and modelling have delayed the presentation of a Draft Middleton Town Centre Masterplan. Options will now be presented to
Members in Q1. Completion of a Heywood Town Centre Masterplan has also been delayed due to the complexities of the highway modelling and street widths for
alternative traffic flows. A highway design will be presented to Members in Q1. Funding to undertake a Littleborough Town Centre Masterplan has been secured
through the GM Stations Alliance Corridor project. Options will be presented to Members during 2020/21.
E19005.E

Support developer to identify a viable scheme for Rochdale Riverside Phase 2

31 March 2020



Work on Rochdale Riverside Phase 2 continued during Q4 with planning permission secured in March for an enabling works contract. Tenders were received for the
works in early Feb and an anticipated start on site is due in June. Cabinet resolved to progress on RR Phase 2 in February with agreement to fund the detailed
design. This will establish the preferred uses for the site and their viability.
Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 4 Of 10

Economy Directorate Plan 2019-20
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

E19006 Make the most of our built, natural and historic environment.

31 March 2020



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

E19006.A

Consult on public realm designs for Town Hall Square

31 December 2019



Work to finalise scope and costs for the Town Hall Square works is ongoing with the initial budget only able to provide a much smaller scheme. Programme Board
agreed to look at funding the full scheme and a capital programme bid will be submitted in summer for this. Additional design works have been undertaken and
RIBA design stage 3 is compete. Costings will be determined by the end of April.

Page 30

Launch grant scheme for Heritage Action Zone

E19006.C

Prepare development brief for development of land around Tonge Hall

E19006.B

30 June 2019



31 December 2019



The Heritage Action Zone Grant scheme is now operational and the first two projects completed.

Progress with heritage projects which are outside of RDA’s control has been slow, including Tonge Hall and Hopwood Hall. A review of these projects will take place
in Q1 to see if they can be accelerated.
E19006.D

Implement agreed schedule of grant funded repair works to Hopwood Old Hall

31 March 2020



31 March 2020



Emergency works ongoing, delays due to contractor supply chain issues.
E19006.E

Develop long term strategy for re-use of Hopwood Old Hall

We are continuing to support Hopwood Depree with access issues and exploring all funding options to secure a viable use of the Hall and surrounding land.
E19006.F

Work up HLF stage 2 bid for re-use and adaptation of Rochdale Town Hall

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 5 Of 10

31 March 2020



Economy Directorate Plan 2019-20
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

Further consultation took place in January and February 2020 to pick up any groups or areas that had been missed in the first round of consultation. The team are
now working on producing all the necessary documents and on target to submit for our second Round NLHF application before the end of May 2020.
E19006.G

Prepare the Castleton masterplan to support visitor and economic growth along the East
Lancashire Railway between Heywood - Castleton

31 December 2019



A final Masterplan has been completed for the Castleton station area. This will be developed as a Draft Supplementary Planning Document for public consultation
during 2020/21. The Council is working with the GMCA and Stations Alliance to secure funding for early phases of this Plan, including the release of vacant public
sector assets for housing, consultation on the GMCA's cycle corridor scheme, car parking and public realm. Work has also started to support TfGM on the feasibility
of a tram - train pathfinder scheme to Heywood via Castleton and to merge the design of this project with the ELR Castleton extension project.
E19006.H

Support the Environment Agency to deliver the River Roch Flood Alleviation Scheme in
Littleborough. Adopt Supplementary Planning Document for College Bank/Lower Falinge

31 December 2019



Page 31

A planning application for the Phase 1 Littleborough scheme was submitted and is expected to be determined during May 2020. Work will then commence on this
section of the scheme during Summer 2020. Work to prepare Littleborough Phase 2 and a phased Rochdale scheme are ongoing with planning applications
expected Autumn 2020.

E19007 Provide an effective and efficient portfolio of Council assets.

31 December 2019



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

E19007.A

Review options for the restructure of the management of the commercial and industrial estate to
increase performance.

31 August 2019



The new RDA managed Project Team, which has been established to manage and maintain the council’s Industrial Portfolio, has been in operation since July 2019
and has continued to deal with a number of legacy issues. The team have established good relationships with their tenants and were planning to increase rents
during 2020/21 and bring in additional revenue for the Council, albeit such proposals will clearly need to be reviewed in light of the coronavirus pandemic.
E19007.B

Review the operational efficiency of the Councils non-operational assets to increase performance

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 6 Of 10

31 December 2019



Economy Directorate Plan 2019-20
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

Ongoing task, due to be completed in 2020/21

E19008 Maximise income for the Council.

31 March 2020



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

E19008.A

Review of 50 Council assets reviewed for potential disposal

31 March 2020



31 March 2020



Over 50 assets have been reviewed for disposal during 2019/20 exceeding target.

Page 32

E19008.B

Deliver savings targets by strategic investment in property through the Commercial Investment
Fund

No suitable properties were identified for acquisition in 2019/20. Whilst it remains a key objective to achieve the savings targets this must be balanced by prudence
in the selection of appropriate investments in order to manage the exposure to financial risk.
E19008.C

Provide £100,000 income through the promotion of discretionary chargeable Planning services

31 March 2020



31 March 2020



The total income received from discretionary planning charges during 2019/20 was £119,259 thus exceeding target.
E19008.D

Deliver Business Rates payable growth to secure additional £1m

Total new business rates income was £395,000. The target could not be met during 2019/20 which had assumed the in-year completion of the Rochdale Riverside
scheme. This new floorspace being completed just after year end. The additional £600k will therefore come forward in Q1 of 20/21

E19009 Capitalise on our investment in regional growth.

31 March 2020



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

E19009.A

Apply for and secure minimum £10m funding from GM for Rochdale Borough projects

31 March 2020



Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 7 Of 10

Economy Directorate Plan 2019-20
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

During 2019/20, a total of £7.687m was secured from GM devolved funds for Rochdale related projects. A further £10.5m of GM funding for the Castleton Rochdale town centre cycle corridor scheme had been due to be awarded by the GMCA in March 2020. This meeting was postponed until Summer 2020 due to the
coronavirus outbreak. Excluding this figure, overall the total of external funding secured to date in the financial year 19/20 was £16.9m. During Q4, a further
£314,000 of Local Growth Fund was secured for the South Parade public realm improvements in Rochdale town centre and £30,000 of funding awarded to support
our master planning along the Calder Valley rail stations. A bid for £250,000 of GM funding for the Rochdale Station Gateway masterplan submitted in Q4.
E19009.B

Support GMCA in preparation of strategic plans and strategies:- GMSF

31 October 2019



Work on GMSF continues to support the GMCA in preparing its submission plan. Key focus is Systra Transport work and Three Dragons viability project.
E19009.C

Support GMCA in preparation of strategic plans and strategies:- GM 2040 Delivery Plan

31 October 2019



Page 33

The GM 2040 Transport Strategy and Delivery Plan will be refreshed during 2020 to align with more recent strategic work on Clean Air, GMSF, Streets for All,
Walking and Cycling initiatives, bus reform and future tram - train extensions. To support this a local District Implementation Plan and projects are being prepared.
A workshop was held with TfGM in Q4 and a Draft of this local transport plan will be brought before Members for consideration and approval during 2020.
E19009.D

Support GMCA in preparation of strategic plans and strategies:- GM Local Industrial Strategy

31 December 2019



Using GMCA grant funding, we have jointly appointed a consultant team with Bury to prepare an infrastructure capacity and needs study for the Northern Gateway
site. A post to lead this work is being re-advertised. Further work to assess the opportunity to establish an Advanced Manufacturing Park within the site is being
commissioned with GMCA using these funds.
E19009.E

Support GMCA in preparation of strategic plans and strategies:- GM Skills and Employment
Strategy.

31 March 2020



The largest budget for skills funding devolved last year to GM is the Adult Education Budget. We have met with the wide range of providers who have this funding
to update on the boroughs needs and opportunities and gain commitment to reduce duplication and fill gaps. The borough's Growth Plan 2020-2030 will be used to
plan training funded by GM.
E19009.F

Form public / private partnerships to support delivery of development opportunities

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 8 Of 10

31 March 2020



Economy Directorate Plan 2019-20
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

Following the completion of a partnership agreement with GM Stations Alliance, the Alliance agreed to fund a residential capacity study around rail stations within
the Borough. The study has identified additional development opportunities, including the release of surplus rail assets for commercial and residential uses around
stations. This work will be developed into a Rail Corridor Strategy and presented to Members during 2020/21.
E19009.G

Develop 10 year Growth Plan for the borough

31 December 2019



The 2020 - 2030 Growth Plan has been completed and approved by Cabinet.
Commission and complete a feasibility/plan for an Advanced Manufacturing Park for Northern
31 March 2020

Gateway
Using GMCA grant funding, we have jointly appointed a consultant team with Bury to prepare an infrastructure capacity and needs study for the Northern Gateway
site. A post to lead this work is being readvertised. Further work to assess the opportunity to establish an Advanced Manufacturing Park within the site is being
commissioned with GMCA using these funds.
E19009.H

Page 34

E19010 Deliver high quality and effective services.

31 March 2020



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

E19010.A

To determine planning applications to exceed national targets

31 March 2020



31 October 2019



Majors 77.78% determined in less than 13 weeks or with an extension of time.
Minors 86.9% determined in less than 8 weeks or with an extension of time.
Others 89.61% determined in less than 8 weeks or with an extension of time.
Redesign business processes and develop new performance measures in Development
E19010.B
Management.

Mondrem project had been progressing well. The team had mapped out current business processes, introduced some new ways of working & quick wins (inc. closer
working at validation stage and shorter report templates) and have finally developed an accurate picture of work-in-progress. Work was due to start on mapping
out new business processes but has now been suspended for 1-month due to Covid-19. Work scheduled to commence again during Q1.
E19010.C

Successful launch of the revised Asset Strategy.

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

30 June 2019
Page 9 Of 10



Economy Directorate Plan 2019-20
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

This has now been completed.

E19011 Deliver more high value and aspirational housing

31 March 2020



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

E19011.A

Develop an aspirational housing strategy for the Borough

31 October 2019



A series of developer and stakeholder workshops have been held and a draft report provided from the appointed consultant. A Draft strategy will be presented to
Members during 2020/21.

Page 35

E19011.B

Work with developers to obtain planning permission on sites for high value housing

31 March 2020



Several planning permissions have been granted during 2019/20. Three major schemes are at pre application stage specifically focused on larger higher value family
homes for submission in Summer 2020. A number of bespoke smaller development are being discussed with Planning service.
Support implementation of the strategy by identifying a portfolio of Council assets to market for
31 March 2020

aspirational and high value housing
A number of Council sites have been identified and awaiting the completion of the High Value Housing Strategy and market report before being presented to
Members for consideration. The disposal of three Council owned sites has been agreed and these schemes are expected to be submitted for planning later in 2020.
Options for the further release of Council owned land for high value housing will be presented to Members once the study and market assessment work are
completed.
E19011.C

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 10 Of 10

Rochdale Development Agency – Delivery Plan 2019-20
1. Business Development Team
Priority

A.

Work Area

Enquiry Handling

Page 36

Sector Development

Location Promotion

Lead

Timing

Develop and deliver marketing campaigns to promote Rochdale to companies in target sectors.
 Website: 4 enquiries – forms completed and requesting call back
 New website – completed and launched (www.invesinrochdale.co.uk)
 E shot for Kingsway - 812 views (73% open rate) of the email with 25 click throughs. To put this in
perspective the average open rate is 45% and click through rate 1 – 5% is good. We are at 2.4%.
Manage investment enquiries from businesses providing tailored advice and support.
 48 new enquires received and responded to during Q4
 16 investment projects secured creating 75 new jobs and safeguarding 65 jobs.
Devise and develop projects in target sectors to strengthen the case for inward investment in Rochdale.
 Logistics: Continued work with sector to monitor propositions and support where needed re:
Covid19
 Manufacturing: First Industrial Steering Group held for the AMI and masterplanning work
completed for Kingsway Business Park including CGI and cost plan. A series of working groups are
collating information to support the development of a business case, including consideration of
development at South Heywood
 Creative & Digital: ERDF bid for approx. £650k of grant funding has been approved by the MHCLG
board however timescales need to be revised due to Covid-19.
Develop projects to promote Rochdale as a business location locally, regionally and nationally.
 Funding for an inward investment campaign confirmed and work had commenced with STaR
procurement to prepare a brief for tender and run an Expression of Interest to assess market
operators. Procurement exercise on hold due to Covid-19 but can be commenced once restrictions
lifted to progress swiftly
 Ongoing attendance at business conferences and networking events to promote Rochdale in GM.
Around 45 events attended during 19/20.

AS



Mar 20

MM



Mar 20

NE



Mar 20

NE



Mar 20

CH



Mar 20

D. Business Support
Account Management

1

 

B. Occupier Attraction

Lead Generation

C.

Action / Workstream

Develop strategic relations with account managed businesses in target sectors Rochdale.
 15 visits made in Q4 with others postponed due to the coronavirus. Annual total is 73



Partner Services

Rochdale Ambassadors

Business Awards

Page 37
2

Extensive company contact with information about support available from council, growth hub
and others in response to COVID-19 crisis. Newsletters issued to businesses daily from mid-March.

Work with the Growth Company to promote their advice and support services in Rochdale.
 Review meetings held with Business Growth Hub and MIDAS in March 2020 to review activity of
both companies in Rochdale. RDA working with Growth Hub on business coronavirus response
 RDA worked with MIDAS on a textile manufacturing project. Company has taken a lease for a unit
at Fieldhouse Industrial Estate, but project start date delayed due to coronavirus crisis.
Work with This is Rochdale to deliver local networking events and develop the ThisisRochdale programme.
 Ambassador board meetings held in January and March
 Held ambassadors meeting on Monday 2nd March – the best attended so far with 110 delegates
 Virtual ambassadors event to take place Wednesday 8th April 2020 on COVID-19.
Work with the Steering Group to deliver the annual Rochdale Business Awards.
 Award ceremony held 8th November with 260 guests.
 9 categories (including the ‘ThisisRochdale’ one)

CN



Mar 20

AS



Mar 20

CH



Dec 20

2. Major Projects Team – Delivery Plan 2019-20
Key
Priority
no.

Work Area

Action / Workstream

 

Lead

Timing

A. Rochdale Riverside
Rochdale Riverside
retail and leisure
scheme

Page 38

Monitor and coordinate on-site construction activity to secure completion by Easter 2020, including
monitoring compliance with the legal and planning requirements
 The scheme is currently on target to open in Easter 2020 (ahead of scheduled opening)
 The planning application for revisions to the car park and other non-material amendments has
been approved.
Work with Genr8 to confirm asset management and operational arrangements, secure further occupiers
and monitor the financial cash flow
 Asset management set up planning is now complete and asset managers were appointed prior to
the scheme opening
 Detailed discussions are on-going with other potential new occupiers including food and
beverage traders
 The scheme cash flow continues to be monitored.
Work with Genr8 to identify a viable scheme and confirm the delivery & funding options for Phase 2 of the
scheme, including a programme to commence enabling works
 Enabling works and remediation design is complete and planning consent was secured in March
 Tenders were received for the enabling works in early Feb and work is due to commence in June
 RBC agreed to progress the detailed design of the Phase 2 scheme at Cabinet in February. Work
has commenced on the design despite the issues with coronavirus
 Funding and viability will be established when design works are progressed.

GD/SP



Mar 20

GD/SP



Mar 20

DC/SP/
GD



Mar 20

GD/GM



Mar 20

LR



Mar 20

B. Rochdale Town Centre
Rochdale Town
Centre action plan
Rochdale market

3

Produce an annual Action Plan for the Rochdale Town Centre Delivery Plan
 The format and content of the Action Plan has now been agreed. The Action Plan will be updated
every quarter.
Continue the on-going operational & financial management of the indoor & outdoor market, and conclude
a review of the future management options
 The market has been successfully trading for over 6 months and continues to be operated by one
of the existing market traders and committee. It is no longer the responsibility of RDA however
support is provided to the operator
 Proposals for the new use of the market building are being reviewed with a number of options
considered, however no decision has been made due to Covid-19 and demand lost
 The market operation is now on hold since the outbreak of coronavirus and all retail has ceased.

The Walk / The Butts
shop front
improvement scheme
Butts Avenue
improvement scheme

Smith Street paving
scheme

Rochdale town centre
mural festival

Page 39

South Parade
improvement scheme

Bell Street
improvement scheme

4

Complete the design work, confirm costs, prepare tender documents and procure a contractor to
undertake a comprehensive shop front improvement scheme
 Initial ideas for improvements to The Walk are being prepared. Surveyors will be appointed to
carry out some initial surveys of the properties prior to agreeing a scheme.
Complete the design work, confirm costs, prepare tender documents and procure a contractor to
undertake the agreed scheme
 Detailed designs have been completed for the project, which incorporate the property
improvements, public realm and lighting elements
 Planning has been approved for the installation of decorative screens on the avenue
 No tender submissions were originally returned, works are in the process of being retendered
 Further consultation with adjoining businesses is underway.
Complete the design work, confirm costs, prepare tender documents and procure a contractor to
undertake the agreed scheme
 The public realm and re-modelling of the steps outside Number One Riverside are now complete.
 The Smith Street / Milton Street junction section of works are going to be completed post Dippy.
Coordinate activity needed to secure delivery of festival including planning permission and building owner
consents
 The Mural Festival took place from 23rd-26th August and delivered 12 large scale murals together
with and events programme
 Discussions about potential future murals or continuation of the festival are taking place.
Complete design work, confirm costs, prepare tender documents and procure a contractor to undertake a
property frontage & block improvement scheme along with improved paving
 Professional team appointed for the design and delivery of the scheme (Conservation Accredited
Architects)
 Historic research and initial design work complete, consultation with property owners taking
place, submission of planning and start of tender process in February 2020 with implementation
programmes for May to September 2020
 Paving scheme complete, except for reinstatement of paving subject to ENW works
 Concept design completed and consultation with property owners taken place with 100% sign up
to detailed design, planning submission and contractor selection
 Works will commence when the contractor is able to start on site.
Secure a licence with the owners, complete the design work, confirm costs, prepare tender documents
and procure a contractor to undertake an environmental improvement scheme
 The lease has been agreed with the site owners and scheme designs are complete
 Tendering was concluded in January with the contractor due to start in February, however delays
by the Riverside contractor prevents access until March. Works commenced in March and were

GM



Mar 20

GM



Mar 20

GM



Mar 20

KK



Mar 20

KK/NB



Dec 20

KK



Mar 20

Drake Street strategy

Heritage Action Zone

Page 40

progressing well, however the Coronavirus has impacted on access to supplies and work has had
to stop for now.
Coordinate implementation of the Drake Street strategy in accordance with the approved Delivery Plan
and Action Plan to secure the reuse of vacant properties & sites and the completion of identified
improvement schemes
 Residential development of 1 Drake Street and 19/21 Church Lane complete
 Cabinet agreed process and funding for Central Retail Park masterplan
 Work with partners on-going to bring forward a development for the former Iveson’s site
 Agreed purchase of key Drake Street property fallen through. Engaging with owner and
considering alternative options
 Ongoing engagement with property owners and market, whilst developing HAZ schemes.
Implementation of the Heritage Action Zone delivery plan and PSiCA grants to secure the repair and reuse
of heritage assets
 Manchester School of Architecture’s exhibition was in N1R from June to August
 The PSiCA historic building repair grant scheme has been approved by Historic England and
officially launched
 South Parade and Drake Street PSiCA grant scheme agreed with all property owners, progressing
to detailed design, planning and contractor selection. Works due to commence in Q1 20/21
subject to contractor availability and access to site
 Spend for 2020/2021 PSiCA programme agreed with Historic England
 Engaging with the owners of PSiCA year 2-4 target and reserve properties
 Continued engagement and research programme in collaboration with Historic England
 Launch of the Co-operative Enterprise HUB in 14 Drake Street in Feb 2020
 Heritage Schools projects in collaboration with Historic England and Manchester School of
Architecture.

NB



Mar 20

KK



Mar 20

EB/JH/ER



Mar 20

C. Heritage assets
Rochdale Town Hall

5

Coordinate work needed to progress the HLF development stage submission in mid-2020 to secure a
Round 2 award in autumn 2020
 Full consultant team appointed. Monthly co-ordination meetings with full team and robust
reporting process established with risk management process
 RIBA Stage 2 designs now completed for all 3 Phases and RIBA 3 underway
 NLHF signed off the mid-point review due in October and team now working to submit bid in May
 Detailed programming of sequencing of the work underway with specialist contractors
 A Heritage Conservation Studio for the ongoing cleaning, restoration and repair work being
explored to be established with education and industry partners
 Phase 3 brief to be agreed by RBC now principle of RBC capital programme funding established



Page 41

Town Hall Square
public realm

Tonge Hall

6

Further consultation took place in January and February 2020 to pick up any groups or areas that
had been missed in the first round of consultation
 The team are now working on producing all the necessary documents to submit for our second
Round NLHF application – on target for the end of May.
Confirm programme and coordinate procurement and implementation of the Phase 1 improvement
works to the building including the decant arrangements for late 2020
 Definition of Phase 1 works is complete. Opening up works undertaken in August and design
team have completed RIBA Stage 2 designs and are working on RIBA Stage 3 detail
 The decant of the building is being managed by RDA with the RBC Estates Team with options
being evaluated for the relocation of current services. Monthly group established
 Decant of the building is progressing and options for the relocation of Registrars and the Music
Service have been identified and confirmed at informal cabinet in February. Design work to
convert retail unit N1R for registrars commissioned
 Further opening up works planned for January 2020 and various workshops to be held regarding
areas such as the roof and windows which will inform the final programme and cost plan
 Opening up works took place which informed the design work to give a more detailed schedule of
works for Phase 1. This helped to bring costs down in line with original budget
 Programme Consultant appointed to sense check the overall programme and suggest more
efficient ways of working to maximise time on site
 Decant of the building is still progressing well and the TH team have now started to tackle
furniture and belongings to ensure these are removed before the end of the year.
Progress the design to transform the square including public consultation and confirm the delivery
programme
 RIBA Stage 2 designs being worked up in tandem with town hall scheme to ensure access,
counter-terrorism measures co-ordinated
 TH Board confirmed their desire to progress with the full scheme
 Consents strategy for closure of the highway has been confirmed with Planning and Highways
 Gillespies progressing RIBA 3. The programme for works will align with the town hall restoration
 Counter terrorism measures have now been agreed and incorporated into the design
 Details for the terracing are nearly finalised which will form part of the LBC application for the
building
 RIBA 3 design work and associated cost plan to be finalised by the end of April 2010.
Complete land transfer, prepare development brief, secure planning permission, market the development
opportunity and secure capital receipt
 Change in Executive Management at Academy Trust has led to review of land transfer
agreement, working with new Academy Trust Chief Executive and professional to progress
agreement

EB/JH/ER



Mar 20

ER/JH



Mar 20

NB



Mar 20

Rochdale Fire Service
Museum

Page 42

Hopwood Hall

Heritage Strategy

Middleton Town
centre

 Received legal advice regarding Secretary of State and land transfer
 Development brief, planning permission and marketing to take place after land transfer.
Prepare brief for repair works to building and delivery programme in dialogue with Historic England
 Brief for repair work to be prepared.
Coordinate implementation of the delivery phase, following the Stage 2 HLF approval, to secure a start on
site in October 2019
 Casey Group started on site 27 January 2020. Completed strip out but now stopped due to
COVID19
 Museum and office fit out packages to follow with scheduled opening to be reviewed.
Confirm proposals for the adaptation, fit out and use of the first floor of the building and agree the
implementation programme, operational arrangements and funding
 Casey Group appointed to undertake main work package
 ERDF final bid was submitted mid-November for c£700k additional funding towards wider site to
maximise council match funding and to create digital creative workplaces. Final decision still
awaited from MHCLG
 Planning application for change of use to office determined January 2020.
Complete emergency repair works needed to protect features of significance and continue regular
inspections in discussion with Historic England
 Emergency works due to complete in February 2020
 Emergency works ongoing, delays due to contractor supply chain issues
 Discussions with Historic England regarding potential funding for additional works.
Work with Hopwood DePree and Historic England to prepare a deliverable strategy and programme for
the repair, restoration and re-use of the building including a review of the existing option agreement
 Preparation of strategy & programme and review of option agreement is on-going
 Development of strategy to include synergies with tourism major opportunity within the locality
 Consideration of impact of emerging Zoo proposals.
Work with RBC Planning and partners to undertake a review of heritage projects and assets and prepare a
Heritage Strategy/Heritage Opportunities document
 Initial draft prepared and to be progressed in Q1 of 2020/21.
Complete the paving and shop front improvement scheme and secure financial closure
 Shopfront works completed and financial closure on-going
 Scheme complete.




Mar 20

JH/NE



Mar 20

NB



Dec 19

NB



Mar 20

KK/EB



Dec 20

NB/KK



Jan 20

GM



Mar 20

NB
JH

Sep 19

D. Masterplans / Town Centres
Business rates
reduction & shop
front scheme

7

Identify, promote and implement Business Rates relief scheme and the shopfront & start up grant scheme
to secure the re-occupation of vacant properties in the town centres (Rochdale, Heywood & Middleton)
 Re-advertising of the scheme will take place via an online campaign
 New businesses across the town centres continue to take advantage of the two schemes.

Highway Movement
Framework

Heywood town
centre masterplan

Middleton town
centre masterplan

Page 43

Littleborough
masterplan

Castleton masterplan
and East Lancashire
Railway

8

Complete the review and secure approval of the revised Highway Movement Framework for Rochdale
town centre
 Review is underway, including traffic modelling and initial workshop sessions
 Traffic Modelling exercise is still being completed by TfGM.
Development of a high level masterplan to identify opportunities to strengthen the core functions of the
town centre and support investment and development proposals.
 Masterplan is currently 90% complete. Meeting 10/01/20 to finalise streets for all aspect with
Broadway Malyan and RBC Highways
 Final Meeting 03/04/20 with Broadway Malyan and Cllr Blundell to agree masterplan
 Following this meeting the final masterplan will be presented at the next Heywood Township
Group Meeting.
Development of a high level masterplan to identify opportunities to strengthen the core functions of the
town centre and support investment and development proposals
 Middleton masterplan refresh has begun. Presentation being produced for Middleton Township
Group to provide update on work that has been completed to date on 22/01/20
 Final Meeting 03/04/20 with Highway and Cllr Blundell to agree Highways Interventions within
masterplan
 Following this meeting the final masterplan will be presented at the next Middleton Township
Group Meeting.
Development of a high level masterplan to identify opportunities to strengthen the town centre and
support investment and development proposals
 Development area has been defined and opportunities identified. Broadway Malyan to produce
the final masterplan
 This scheme has now been moved into the Calder Valley programme of works and is being
progressed by WSP.
Development of a high level masterplan for Castleton to identify residential opportunities and other
regeneration potential, and to support visitor and economic growth along the East Lancashire Railway
between Heywood & Castleton
 Castleton Masterplan completed
 New ELR Trust Officer appointed, led by RBC, to assist delivery of ELR 2030 objectives including
Castleton & Heywood projects.
Undertake review of the Network Rail approved Castleton extension feasibility study when completed and
define and agreed scope of future project
 Network Rail appointed to carry out feasibility study which is now complete. This will be fed into
Castleton Masterplan process
 Achieved GRIP Stage II.

AM



Mar 20

AM/PM



Mar 20

AM/PM



Mar 20

AM/PM



Mar 20

NB/MR



Mar 20

NB/MR



Dec 19

Station Gateway /
Milkstone Road
masterplan

Rochdale Town
Centre Residential
Masterplan

Page 44
9

Undertake review of the Heywood engine shed feasibility study when completed and define and agreed
scope of future project
 Feasibility Study completed, project not viable. ELR investigating smaller scale project
 RDA Project Team now looking at delivery of small units for this land instead.
The development of a masterplan and associated work programme of physical improvements to create a
more attractive retail and living environment and to secure additional private investment
 Masterplan work by external consultants has been commissioned and stakeholder workshops
have taken place
 The preferred masterplan is now complete and the delivery strategy is currently being
developed/finalised.
Development of a strategy for Rochdale town centre to create the market conditions to deliver new
residential units within the town centre and bring forward a viable package of sites, including Central
Retail Park
 Strategy was completed in Q4
 Progressing sites for town centre residential including Central Retail Park and Rochdale Riverside
Phase 2
 Central Retail Park secured approval in February from Cabinet to progress detailed design and
viability through to RIBA stage 4 and planning permission during 2020/21
 Procurement of the design team will be concluded in Q1 20/21.

NB/MR



Dec 19

GM/MR



Mar 20

GM/MR



Mar 20

3. Business Parks and Development

 

Key
Work Area
Action
Priority
No
A. To promote and improve a portfolio of competitive, high quality Business Parks and Industrial Estates including (but not limited to):
South Heywood
Employment Area /
Junction 19 Link Road

Page 45
Kingsway Business
Park

10

Work with Partners and Rochdale Council to progress the Junction 19 Link Road Scheme to enable a
start on site in early 2020/21
Work with Rochdale Council and partners to complete a main contractor procurement process, including
appointment of a contractor.
 Stage 2 Invitation to Tender submissions were received on 2nd April, with 4 contactors
submitting bids
 Appointment of a main contractor is due in June 2020.
Secure agreement of the heads of terms for the development agreement between Rochdale Council and
the developer for the delivery of the Junction 19 Link Road
 Russell Homes have agreed to the draft Heads of Terms, which will now be worked up into a
Development Agreement.
Complete the development agreement between Rochdale Council and the developer for the delivery of
the Junction 19 Link Road
 Work on the Development Agreement is ongoing
 Deadline for completion is May 2020.
Work with Rochdale Council and partners to secure Growth Deal Funding from the Greater Manchester
Combined Authority (through their agent TfGM) including approval of a Full Business Case
 Work is ongoing on the preparation of the Business Case with target date for submission to TfGM
of April 2020.
Achieve a construction start on site
 Work is currently targeted to commence in summer 2020, although this may change as a result
of Covid 19.
Work to deliver development across the Business Park in accordance with the overall Strategic
Objectives of the Kingsway Partnership
Work with Wilson Bowden and contractors to secure construction completion of the Logic small unit
development at Plot D
 Practical completion achieved in June 2019, snagging works complete.
Work with commercial letting agents to secure tenants for 50% of the Logic development
 KPI Industries and Commercial Blinds and Just Fulfil are now occupying 4 units on a permanent
basis. WCCTV and Just Fulfil are now occupying 2 further units on a temporary basis

Lead

Timing

RD / SP
RD



Mar 20

RD / SP



Dec 19

RD / SP



Mar 20

RD / AM



Dec 19

RD / AM



Mar 20

RD / SP



Jun 19

RD / SP



Mar 19

RD / AM



Stakehill Industrial
Estate

Page 46
11

Legal terms that were agreed on 2 further units, are on hold due to Covid-19 while the
prospective tenants review the situation.
Work with Wilson Bowden Developments to agree a commercially acceptable funding package and
progress development of a medium unit scheme on Plot G
 Negotiations progressing positively with Wilson Bowden Developments although have been
slowed down as a consequence of Covid 19.
Work with Transport for Greater Manchester and Kingsway Businesses to secure the continuation of the
Kingsway Link bus service for 2019/20 and beyond.
 Kingsway Link Bus Service continued to operate successfully throughout 2019/20
 Ongoing transport related discussions with ASDA / Wincanton and JD Sports concerning the bus
operations during 2020/21.
Work with Canmoor and other landowners and occupiers to secure and enhance the economic
attractiveness of Stakehill Industrial Estate
Work with Rochdale Council to secure completion of a Traffic Regulation Order to introduce on-street
parking restrictions
 Traffic Regulation Order approved in July.
Work with Rochdale Council to secure the installation of on-street parking restrictions
 Double yellow lines implemented in September
 Contractor needs to return to fill in a few gaps in the lining caused by the presence of parked
vehicles.
Work with Rochdale Boroughwide Housing to secure the implement and operation of a CCTV system
across the Estate
 CCTV system now operational.
Working with Canmoor, organise a further occupier’s breakfast event.
 Three tenant meetings (including two business breakfasts) have been held this financial year.
As part of a Steering Group, work with specialist consultants to Investigate the feasibility of a Business
Improvement District covering Stakehill Industrial Estate.
 Feasibility Report prepared by BID specialists, Partnerships for Better Business
 BID proposal supported by businesses across the estate, Steering Group meetings now being
held.

SP / DC



Dec 19

RD / AM



Dec 19

RD



Sep 19

RD / AM



Dec 19

RD / AM



Sep 19

RD / AM




Dec 19

RD / AM

RD / AM

Mar 20

RDA Performance Indicators 2019-20
RDA Annual
Target

Q4

Cumulative

Number of successful investment projects receiving RDA assistance

30

17

30



Number of jobs safeguarded by RDA assisted companies

250

65

319



Number of new jobs created by RDA assisted companies or projects

350

75

384



£30,000,000

£30,200,000



300,000

181,000

Performance Indicators

Total level of property investment secured (£)

Page 47

Amount of commercial floor space built with RDA support (sq. ft.)

Key





Achieved




High Risk of project not being achieved

12

Progress on track to achieving target
Steady progress with minor risk of potential
delays

Not Achieved

Commentary



Rochdale Riverside will be achieved in Q1
20/21 delivering a further 220,000ft2 which
would have met the target

ECONOMY DIRECTORATE – OUTPUTS AND OUTCOMES 2019/20
1

2

6 new inward investors
assisted

23 borough
businesses helped to
expand/relocate

5

6

7

4532 borough residents
with improved
employability

1492 qualifications
obtained by
unemployed residents

685 people helped into
employment

3

4

384
new jobs created

319
jobs safeguarded

8

16,815 sq m of new
commercial
floorspace built

(not eligible to be funded
elsewhere)

9

£26.m private sector
investment
13

£5.8m wages earned
from assisted
unemployed moving into
work

10

£395,000 Business
Rates growth
14

£6.6m Savings to the
public sector from
moving into
employment

17

84 positive press stories on local, regional and
national media

11

12

£6,318,640 income to the
Council

£9,273,021 external
funding secured

15

Additional GVA from
residents moving into
work - £10.3m

16

Additional GVA from
jobs created and
safeguarded–
£35.43m

18

600+ New homes built (TBC)

Page 48

Notes:
1. Companies assisted by RDA to move into the borough. Businesses have moved to or expanded into the borough
from Oldham, Bury West Yorkshire, and South Wales. Four received financial support from the council.
2. Companies assisted by RDA to expand/relocate within the borough. 13 received financial support from the
council.
3. New jobs planned to be created by inward investors and expanding local companies assisted by RDA/Council.
Links to free recruitment support made to maximise local economic benefit.
4. Existing borough jobs that have been safeguarded by support from RDA/Council that could have been lost to the
borough by either the business closing or moving out of the borough
5. Borough residents supported that are either unemployed, under-employed, or at risk of redundancy. Includes
both benefit claimants and those not eligible to claim benefits e.g because of partner earnings levels or savings.
Includes wholly delivered e.g ELP contracts or local delivery supported by Directorate staff e.g Working Well
Programme.
6. Qualifications to support obtaining a job that are not able to be funded from other sources. Example – where the
lack of funding for a qualification is the only barrier to securing a job that has been offered subject to the
qualification – good examples working with L4L
7. Combination of ELP outputs, Working Well (that have had council input) and council part-funded self-employment
support.
8. New build is the new Council Kingsway units
9. Includes Rochdale Riverside Genr8 investment and assisted company investment in plant, machinery and property
borough wide.
10. From the new units built at Kingsway. Rochdale Riverside floorspace will be included in 2020/21.
11. Totals income from: rents, employment and skills support contracts, planning and building control fees, and
capital receipts
12. Totals external funding from successful bids for the council or for VCS sector organisations in the borough with
bid writing support by the Directorate, plus S106 monies.
13. Assumes 20 hours per week at NMW (assumption used in GMCA calculations)
14. Calculated as savings to DWP/HMT (less benefit and more tax and NI), methodology used by GMCA
15. Calculated using NUTS3 area (Rochdale/Oldham/Bury) median earnings with 0.42 multiplier to reflect client
groups), methodology used by GMCA
16. Multiplier attached to the new jobs created and those safeguarded by assisted companies (RDA).
17. Combined good news stories issued by the Directorate including RDA and partners on specific projects e.g
Rochdale Riverside.
18. Calculated from new council tax registrations (final number awaited from NHBC records)

Page 49

Agenda Item 7
Report to Integrated Commissioning Board
Date of Meeting
Portfolio
Report Author

Lead Officer

Public/Private Document

28th July 2020
Cabinet Member for Adult
Care
Gareth Davies ( for Adult
Care Directorate & Public
Health & Integrated
Directorate)
Sam Evans (Chief Finance
Officer – Health & Social
Care Integration)
Public

Update on the Integrated Health & Social Care Pooled Fund Section
75 Agreement
Executive Summary
1.

This report updates the Integrated Commissioning Board (ICB) that the
updated Integrated Health & Social Care Pooled Fund Section 75 Agreement
for 2020/21 has been updated and submitted for sign off by both the LA and
Heywood, Middleton & Rochdale Clinical Commissioning Group (HMR CCG).
Recommendation

2.

It is recommended that ICB note that the Integrated Health & Social Care
Pooled Fund Section 75 Agreement for 2020/21 has been updated and
submitted for sign off.
Reason for Recommendation

3.

ICB delegated the final sign off of the agreement to the Pooled Fund Manager
/ Chief Finance Officer for Health & Social Care Integration. This report
provides an update to ICB regarding progress on this matter for 2020/21.
Key Points for Consideration

4.1

The updated Integrated Health & Social Care Pooled Fund Section 75
Agreement for 2020/21 has been updated and submitted for sign off by both
the LA and Heywood, Middleton & Rochdale Clinical Commissioning Group
(HMR CCG).

4.2

As with the previous Section 75 Agreement, this is a 2 year Agreement and
the schedules will be updated annually.

Page 50

4.3

The Section 75 agreement has been updated to reflect: The 2020/21 partner contributions to the Health and Social Care Pooled
Fund and Better Care Fund and details on how the Better Care Fund is
intended to be spent.
 The updated risk share agreement for 2020/21 agreed at ICB and
Cabinet in May.
 The latest ICB Terms of Reference.
Alternatives Considered

4.4

A signed Section 75 agreement is a legal requirement for the operation of a
pooled fund, as such, there is no alternative to this. There is the option of
having two Section 75 Agreements, one for each Pool. As the only differences
between the pools simply relate to the risk share agreements and the levels of
contributions made by the Partners, it is considered to be more effective to
have a single Section 75 with different Schedules reflecting the varying risk
share arrangements / contributions made by Partners.
Costs and Budget Summary

5.

There is no specific financial impact arising out of the updated Section 75
agreement. The agreement merely now has the two different risk share
agreements that have been agreed by both Partners for the two pooled funds.
Risk and Policy Implications

6.

Section 75 of the NHS Act 2006 allows local authorities and NHS bodies to
enter into partnership arrangements to provide a more streamlined service
and to pool resources, if such arrangements are likely to lead to an
improvement in the way their functions are exercised. The legal mechanisms
allowing budgets to be pooled under the section 75 partnership agreement
enable greater integration between health and social care and more locally
designed services. Section 75 permits formation of a pooled budget
comprised of contributions by both the LA and the CCG from which
payments can be made towards expenditure incurred in the exercise of both
prescribed functions of the NHS body and health-related functions of the LA.
The Act precludes CCGs from delegating any functions relating to family
health services, the commissioning of surgery, radiotherapy and certain other
invasive treatments and emergency ambulance services. For local
authorities, the services that can be included within section 75 arrangements
are broad in scope and a detailed exclusions list is contained within
Regulations of the NHS Bodies and Local Authorities Partnership
Arrangements Regulations 2000.
Consultation

7.

This report has been produced in consultation with colleagues from both the
LA and HMRCCG.

Page 51

Background Papers
8.

Place of Inspection

There are no background papers

For Further Information Contact:

Gareth Davies ( for Adult Care
Directorate & Public Health & Integrated
Directorate), Tel: 01706924888,
gareth.davies@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 52

Agenda Item 9

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 53

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 59

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 80

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 86

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 142

Agenda Item
10
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 168

